
Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.

Please ask for:
Gurdip Paddan

* Reporting to Cabinet
2 April 2019

Dear Councillor

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL to be held on Thursday 11 April 2019 at 
7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, 
Herts, AL8 6AE.

Yours faithfully

Corporate Director
Public Protection, Planning and Governance

A G E N D A
PART 1

1.  SUBSTITUTIONS 

To note any substitution of Committee Members in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rules 19 – 22.

2.  APOLOGIES 

3.  MINUTES 

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 7 March 2019 
(previously circulated). 

4.  NOTIFICATION OR URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 8 

Public Document Pack



5.  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS 

To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda.

6.  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS 

Up to fifteen minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions.

7.  INTRODUCTION OF WAITING RESTRICTIONS AND VERGE AND FOOTWAY 
PROHIBITION IN VARIOUS ROADS, BIRCHWOOD, HATFIELD (Pages 5 - 50)

Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) 
on the introduction of waiting restrictions and verge and footway prohibition in 
various roads, Birchwood, Hatfield.

8.  SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION 

9.  EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The Panel is asked to resolve:

That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 10 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100A(3) and Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended). 

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 

PART II

10.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN 

Circulation: Councillors S.Boulton (Chairman)
H.Bromley (Vice-Chairman)
A.Chesterman
J.Cragg
C.Gillett
S.Glick

G.Hayes
S.Kasumu
A Rohale
P.Shah
P.Zukowskyj

Co-opted Members:-
Tenants’ Panel Representatives

R. Read



Corporate Management Team
Press and Public (except Part II Items)

If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Gurdip 
Paddan, Governance Services on 01707 357349 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1
Main author: Matthew McCann
Executive Member: Cllr S Boulton
Hatfield Central Ward

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 11 APRIL 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES)

INTRODUCTION OF WAITING RESTRICTIONS AND VERGE AND FOOTWAY 
PROHIBITION IN VARIOUS ROADS, BIRCHWOOD, HATFIELD

1 Executive Summary

1.1 In November 2016, the Council delivered parking survey forms to all residents 
within the Birchwood area. Residents were asked if they would like to see any 
changes to the parking restrictions, options included a resident permit schemes 
and single/double yellow lines. . Birchwood was split into three areas. Area Three 
and Great North Road was completed in 2018, this report focuses on the remaining 
sections of the Birchwood consultation area.

1.2 Areas Two and Three is mainly residential, with some shops within Birchwood 
Avenue by the junctions of Homestead Road and Crawford Road. To the east of 
the residential area is the Great North Road industrial area. 

1.3 Some residents within the consultation area had previously contacted Parking 
Services highlighting significant parking demand in certain roads, often where 
there is a cluster of homes close together, sharing a small section of highway. 
Parking Services carried out parking improvements within the area where it was 
possible to introduce extra parking spaces. This included the creation of additional 
9 parking bays in Cornerfield and 7 bays in Branch Close. 

1.4 This report sets out the results of the informal consultation, the statutory 
consultation and the recommended course of action. A total of 1647 residents and 
businesses have been consulted. Six objections have been received and shown 
within this report. See Appendix A.

1.5 The Council can amend proposals once advertised, as long as they make the 
scheme less restrictive. This can be done without having to re-advertise the Traffic 
Regulation Order.

2 Recommendation(s)

2.1 That the Panel consider the objections received in 4.1 to 4.7, and in particular the 
issues raised in Section 15 around equalities and diversity and having considered 
all the detailed issues in this report including any proposed mitigating actions, 
recommends to Cabinet to proceed with the amended proposals (Appendix C) 
and the creation of the Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) for all the reasons set out 
in this report.

3 Explanation

3.1 The response from the roads in Areas One and Two of Birchwood was low - 408 
responses equating to 24.7%. There was 90 requests (5.4%) for resident permit 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



2

restrictions. The majority of responses did not want to have parking restrictions 
within the area. As part of the ongoing works programme, Parking Services looks 
to introduce junction protection (in the form of double yellow lines) in every 
consultation area to improve road safety and visibility and to formalise what is 
already within the highway code – not to park within 10 metres of a junction.

3.2 A significant number of residents in the area also highlighted in the consultation 
regarding vehicles causing obstructive parking on the verges and footways. The 
largest request for this came from Crawford Road with 12 residents highlighting 
verge and footway parking as an issue. The council therefore proposed to 
introduce a Verge and Footway Order, which will enable Penalty Charge Notices 
to be issued to vehicles that are parked on the verge or footway. This Order can 
be enforced at any time and will help preserve the verges, reduce maintenance, 
and improve accessibility for pedestrians. 

Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO)

3.3 On the 13th February 2019 the public notice proposing “The Borough of Welwyn 
Hatfield (Various Roads, Birchwood, Hatfield) (Restriction of Waiting) Order 
2019 together with “The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, 
Birchwood, Hatfield) (Prohibition of Stopping and Waiting on Verge or 
Footway) Order 2019 was advertised in the Welwyn Hatfield Times. Notices were 
also erected in the lengths of roads affected. The closing date for formal objections 
was Friday 8th March 2019. See Appendix B

3.4 Based on objections received from three residents directly affected by the 
proposed single yellow line on Crawford Road, the Council suggests to amend the 
proposals advertised by removing the single yellow line from the proposals, and 
leave that section of carriageway unrestricted. The rest of the proposals to go 
ahead as advertised. See Appendix C 

4 Objections

4.1 There are three objections pertaining to Crawford Road, and the proposal for 
Verge and Footway prohibition Order. 

Below is a summary of the grounds for objection.

a) We maintain the grass verge outside of our property. You will also see 
that no one parks on the grass verge outside my property.

b) I am against the issuing of a PCN for those who park on the verges. This 
does not solve the problem in the area. At times it is necessary to 
park/mount half of the vehicle onto verge to avoid tight passing of 
oncoming traffic rather than parking next to the verge.

c) Converting the verge to allow vehicles to mount onto the verge for 
parking. Similar design on Crawford Road near the roundabout with 
Homestead Road.

d) I would want the restriction of having a driveway on a lay-by lifted for 
those residential properties. 

e) Parking on a dropped kerb (Vehicle crossover) should be allowed for 
residents with a driveway and their visitors. 

Page 6



3

f) If I can only park kerb edge in front of my property this would cause 
implications for emergency services, dust carts or any large delivery 
vehicles will not be able to pass if someone parks opposite me. 

4.2 The reasons for moving forward with the proposals for Verge and Footway 
prohibition Order are as follows:

4.2.1 Responses to 4.1

a) The grass verges along the road is part of public maintainable space. The 
introduction of a verge and footway prohibition is implemented across the 
whole scope of the road. To remove small sections of public verge would 
impractical for enforcement or not be in the interests of fairness. 
Introducing the prohibition order would not change the status quo for that 
small section of verge as the resident has said no vehicles park upon it.

b) An area wide by-law currently covers all roads within the borough, 
however it is impracticable to enforce. Upon a Friday night visit by 
Parking Services Officer, it was found, there was sufficient provision for 
vehicles to park upon the carriageway within Crawford Road (and in 
nearby roads of Birchwood Avenue and Homestead Road. Residents 
often have a strong preference to park directly outside their property. 
Based upon the late night visit, 13 vehicles were seen to park on the 
grass verges, however all vehicles were parked within a 3 minute walk 
from an equal number of suitable parking spaces upon the highway. 
There was ongoing roadworks within the road, which had reduced 
kerbside parking by at least another 15 vehicle spaces. 

c) The “grid like” concrete installed on that part of Crawford Road was 
introduced by Hertfordshire County Council. Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council do not install concrete into the verges. It would be financially 
unviable to convert all verges in Crawford Road into parking bays for 
additional vehicles, and many parts of the verges would be unsuitable 
due to underground facilities underneath them. Grass verges are not 
designed to hold the weight of a parked vehicle, and parking upon them 
can cause damage to tree root systems and utilities. 

d) Permission to grant a dropped kerb and access for a driveway is 
controlled by Hertfordshire County Council. Not all properties will meet 
requirements for a driveway such as gradient or underground utilities or 
size of the frontage of the property. In this case, removing a parking layby 
may not increase the number of vehicles that can park, as removing the 
lay by for 3 driveways will remove 3 vehicles off the highway – the layby 
can currently hold 4 vehicles, so will increase parking demand on the 
highway.

e) Vehicle crossovers form part of the public highway boundaries, and is 
created to provide a way to legally access a driveway/hardstanding. 
Vehicles parking on crossovers would lead to those vehicles overhanging 
the verge or footway causing hazards for pedestrians. Parking in such 
manner can also cause a hazard for other drivers from adjacent 
properties with regards to lack of vision to enter or exit to and from the 
carriageway.

Page 7



4

f) The average road width in Crawford Road is 6 metres, in some parts of 
the road greater. A width of a 4x4 vehicle is on average 1.7 metres. This 
would allow traffic to pass in a single file past any vehicles parked directly 
opposite each other. The regulated maximum width of a fire engine is 
2.55 metres.  The road itself has many dropped kerbs leading to 
driveways, which reduces the likelihood of vehicles parking directly 
opposite to each other. The majority of the road would not have vehicles 
parking directly opposite. During the Friday night visit to Crawford Road, 
any vehicles parked directly opposite each other did not pose any width 
issues, and not many vehicles were seen parking in front of a vehicle 
crossover. A common sense approach should always be taken by drivers 
when parking to ensure they do not park obstructively. 

4.3 There is one objection pertaining to Great Heath, and the proposal for Verge and 
Footway prohibition Order. 

Below is a summary of the grounds for objection.

a) The council has not come up with a solution of more parking space since 
the population of the borough had doubled. Parking on the verge is a sign 
of shortages of parking space.

4.4 The reasons for moving forward with the proposals for Verge and Footway 
prohibition Order are as follows:

4.4.1 Responses to 4.3

a) The parking improvements programme created an additional 9 parking 
spaces in nearby Cornerfield, which can be accessed in a 2-5 minute 
walk via a pathway to Great Heath opposite those parking bays. On a 
Friday night visit, witnessed at 12:30am, of the 9 parking bays there was 
3 spaces available. Within Great Heath 9 vehicle sized spaces was 
available, compared to 33 parked vehicles. Two vehicles were seen 
parked on the grass verge opposite 3 vacant spaces on the highway 
within Great Heath. The cluster like nature of the properties within Great 
Heath causes a large demand for parking space within a short section of 
kerbside space. Residents may need to look for parking space a short 
reasonable distance away from their property, and space cannot be 
dedicated for each property. However, within a 5 minute walk of Great 
Heath, within Hillfield, Cornerfield and Longmead 18 spaces on the 
highway could be found for a vehicle to park on. 

4.5 0There is one objection pertaining to Great Heath, and the proposal for double 
yellow lines. 

Below is a summary of the grounds for objection.

a) Council’s own parking standard for “Total number of parking spaces per 
dwelling required for apartments and houses that have only communal 
parking provision” works out at 30 spaces for these 20 flats.

b) The double yellow line marked in yellow is used for parking up to 5 cars, 
all the time.  

Page 8



5

c) To my knowledge, in the past 5 years, there has not been one accident 
on this corner due to parked cars.

d) If you were to go ahead with the proposals, are the council going to 
provide any additional spaces, for example turning the grassed area 
outside 29-35 into hard standing parking spaces?

e) I attach these photographs to show you the issues faced in Great Heath. 

4.6 The reasons for moving forward with the proposals for double yellow lines are as 
follows:

4.6.1 Responses to 4.5

a) The parking standards policy relates to parking off the public highway and 
relates to new developments for planning purposes. The 1.5 spaces per 
dwelling is a maximum demand-based car parking standards as part of a 
strategy to reduce dependence on the car and encourages greater use 
of non-car modes of travel. The majority of parking available in Great 
Heath is on the public highway; however some properties have dedicated 
parking ports. On the night visit to the road, no vehicles were seen 
parking within that proposed section of double yellow lines. There was 33 
vehicles parked, with space for another 9 vehicles (if the areas for 
proposed double yellow lines is discounted). As mentioned in 4.4.1, the 
cluster like nature of the properties within Great Heath causes a large 
demand for parking space within a short section of kerbside space. 
Residents may need to look for parking space a short distance away from 
their property. Additional parking is available in other adjacent public 
highways. 

b) As mentioned in a), no vehicles were seen parked in the section of 
highway where the double yellow line is proposed, and beyond it outside 
properties 33-35, 3 vehicle spaces were available during the night time 
visit. On other visits to the road, parking spaces are often available within 
the road.

c) Parking Services look to introduce junction protection (in the form of 
double yellow lines) when consulting in areas, to improve road safety and 
visibility and to formalise what is already within the highway code – not 
to park within 10 metres of a junction. This also improves access for large 
vehicles such as the refuge trucks that need additional turning sweep to 
get in and out of the junction. 

d) When the Birchwood consultation started, each verge area was 
considered for creation of additional parking spaces. However to design 
such spaces, consideration has to be taken to ensure parking bays are 
not constructed on the edge of a junction, as well as other factors such 
as underground utilities, lamp-posts, trees, land ownership and the 
gradient of the land. The land in question was not suitable for the parking 
improvements programme. The parking improvements programme 
introduced additional parking bays in Cornerfield, which as mentioned in 
4.4.1, is accessible for Great Heath residents via a pathway to opposite 
the newly created bays. 

Page 9



6

e) As a maximum, only two vehicles in this photograph can be seen parked 
in the area proposed for double yellow lines. However, it can be seen 
within the photograph of 3 parking spaces being available on the 
highway. One to the left edge of the photograph, one space beyond the 
junction of proposed lines, as well as available parking in Hillfield that can 
be seen crossing from left to right in the top of the photograph. 

4.7 There is one objection pertaining to Talbot Road, and the proposal for double 
yellow lines. 

Below is a summary of the grounds for objection.

a) Double yellow lines would cause me great problems if I was unable to 
park outside to load and unload. 

b) Imagine the situation if someone orders a couple of sofas, a new bed, or 
has shopping delivered the nearest place to park without the risk of being 
ticketed is 3 roads away. 

c) A single yellow line with parking between the hours of 9am and 3pm.

4.8 The reasons for moving forward with the proposals for double yellow lines are as 
follows:

4.8.1 Responses to 4.7

a) Residents would be able to load and unload from their vehicles on a 
double yellow line, as a loading exemption applies to those yellow lines. 
A Civil Enforcement Officer would observe a vehicle for at least 5 minutes 
to check if any loading activity is ongoing before a PCN could be issued.

b) As above, a loading exemption applies. Double yellow lines are being 
proposed on junctions and in parts of Talbot Road where obstructive 
parking occurs stopping vehicles from being able to access off street 
garage areas. Parking would still be available in Talbot Road, and a large 
parking provision would still be available in other adjacent roads such as 
Homestead Road and Chelwood Avenue. 

c) The double yellow lines are being proposed in part sections of the road 
to enable better access for vehicles to use the off street garage areas. 
Enabling vehicles to continue to park in the areas of road proposed for 
double yellow lines would prevent access.

5 Legal Implication(s)

5.1 TROs are created under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. Consultations 
follow a statutory legal process as set out in The Local Authorities' Traffic Orders 
(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996. No other legal implications 
are inherent in relation in to the proposals in this report.

6 Financial Implication(s)

6.1 The cost of TRO works recommended in this report will be funded through existing 
Parking Services revenue budgets.

Page 10



7

6.2 It is standard procedure to monitor new parking restrictions for the first 6 months 
after they are implemented. During this period all reports of safety issues or parking 
displacement will be recorded. If any significant safety issues are discovered 
during the monitoring period, Parking Services will investigate and carry out the 
appropriate remedial action.

7 Risk Management Implications

7.1 Changing the parking conditions in the above mentioned roads could generate 
negative publicity. Some parking may be displaced into nearby roads. 

7.2 It is standard procedure to monitor new parking restrictions for the first 6 months 
after they are implemented. During this period all reports of safety issues or parking 
displacement will be recorded. If any significant safety issues are discovered 
during the monitoring period, Parking Services where possible will investigate and 
carryout the appropriate remedial action.

8 Security & Terrorism Implications

8.1 There are no security & terrorism implications inherent in relation to the 
proposals in this report.

9 Human Resources

9.1 There are no known Human Resources implications in relation to the proposals in 
this report.

10 Communication and Engagement

10.1 When making any changes to parking restrictions there is a statutory consultation 
process set out in the Local Authority Traffic Orders (Procedures) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 1996 which the Council needs to adhere to. This includes 
consulting directly with all affected parties and a number of statutory consultees, 
such as the Police and Hertfordshire County Council. 

10.2 In addition, Notices are required to be erected within all roads affected and 
advertised in the local newspaper, in this case the Welwyn Hatfield Times.

10.3 This process has been carried out and there are no known implications in relation 
to the proposals in this report.

11 Health and Wellbeing

11.1 There are no known Health and Wellbeing implications in relation to the proposals 
in this report

12 Procurement Implications

12.1 There are no procurement implications inherent in relation to the proposals in this 
report.

13 Climate Change Implication(s)

13.1 There are no climate change implications inherent in relation to the proposals in   
this report.

Page 11



8

14  Link to Corporate Priorities

14.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority Protect and 
Enhance the Environment, and specifically to the achievement to Deliver 
Effective Parking Services

 Protect and enhance the environment and deliver effective parking 
services;

 Engage with our communities and provide value for money

 Equality and Diversity

14.2 I confirm that an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out. 

14.3 The EqIA found that there is potential for negative impacts on Age, Pregnancy and 
Disability. The double yellow lines will prevent parking at junctions which may force 
some motorists to park further away from their destination. Parking Services 
believe however that the benefits gained from junction protection far outweigh any 
dis-benefits. There is a potential for a positive impact on Disability. There is an 
inbuilt exemption to the Verge and Footway Prohibition Order which allows for the 
unloading and loading of goods and passengers. Prohibiting vehicles in general 
from parking on the footway could enhance pedestrian access for those who may 
currently find it difficult navigating past parked vehicles on the footway.

14.4 Disabled drivers with a valid blue badge are allowed to park on yellow lines without 
a loading prohibition for up to 3 hrs.

14.5 During the monitoring period (6.2) should any unintended impacts come to light, 
Parking Services will where possible investigate and carryout the appropriate 
remedial action.

Name of author Matthew McCann 01707 357304
Title Parking Services Officer
Date 20th March 2019

Background papers to be listed (if applicable)  

Page 12



Council Offices 
The Campus 
Welwyn Garden City, Herts 
AL8 6AE 

07/03/2019 
Dear Sirs/Madam 

Re: Parking Restriction Proposals 

Environment Services 

I am resident of Crawford Road for over 15 years and have seen the parking situation 
getting increasingly worse. Fortunately for me I have a driveway but I believe the issue is 
worse during the evenings and weekends. I feel sorry for those that do not have a driveway, 
as parking on a verge makes perfect sense to me as coming home late from work has a 
massive effect on whether you can find a space to park or not, many will be affected if this 
protection order gets put into place. It was only last year at the end of Crawford road the 
grids were put in place (see appendix 1), to allow for verge parking without ruining the 
verge, why can this not be done throughout the street. 

With regards to vehicle crossovers, I do have one in front of my property and do use 
it as a space to park at times, as well as visitors they also use it, it frees up a space for 
someone else to park on the road, if, however the order does come into place, from what I 
understand I can park in front of my property but only next to the kerb edge as opposed to 
mounting on the kerb edge (see Appendix 2 and 3), if this is the case this would also cause a 
massive implication as emergency services, dust carts of any large delivery vehicles will not 
able to pass if someone parks opposite me, how can this make any sense, mounting the 
vehicle crossover kerb allows these vehicles to pass through in a safe manor to get to their 
destinations, in the case of emergency services as quickly as possible. 

To restrict parking and issuing of Parking Charge Notice (PCN} is not a solution to the 
problem. As the problem will still persist and cause much inconvenience to some/most 
residents of the area. For example having to park late at night far away from your home 
with young children or any vulnerable persons can put one's self in a very dangerous 
situation especially the fact that the streetlights go out at 12am, once again, how can this 
make any sense. 

If you have any question or would like to discuss any points I raised above further please do 
not hesitate to contact me on the address mentioned above or call me on 

Appendix A

Appendix A Page 1

Page 13



Appendix 1 

Appendix 2 

Appendix 3 

Appendix A

Appendix A Page 2

Page 14



Parking Services, 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
The Campus 
WGC 
Herts 
AL8 6AE 

15111 February 2019 
FAO Matthew Mcann, 

Ref: MM/12114 

Environment Services 

Mr&Mrs-
II Crawford Road 

Hatfield 
Herts 

AL10 OPF 

I wish to appeal against your letter dated 81
h February 2019 for the proposal of single yellow lines 

outside only a small minority of Crawford Road, Hatfield . 
I am appealing this proposal on several grounds. Please see below: 

• Single yellow lines in your letter states it is to stop heavy parking demands and from non -
residents. My husband 'struck or work van is always parked outside of our property so it is 
never used by non- residents. i.e parents doing the nursery drop off. If single yellow line 
were put up it would just mean that the parking is shifted further down Crawford Road and 
then has a knock on affect for all my neighbours. 

• My husband's truck needs to be parked outside our property as it would get stolen and 
broken into for its tools. 

• We bought our house over 20 years ago and the single yellow lines will significantly devalue 
the price of our property when we come to sell it. 

• We paid extra to the Council to have a driveway put in and if the single yellow lines are put 
across our driveway then this will mean ourselves and our children cannot park across it and 
will cause parking problems further along the street. No one else parks across our driveway 
so non- resident i.e parents doing the nursery run never park across our driveway. 

• We maintain the grass verge outside of our property and have done for the past 26 years. 
You will also see that no one parks on the grass verge outside my property, so the grass 
verge protection is not applicable outside of my property and there is no need for the yellow 
single lines to be in place. The grass verge is not churned up outside of my property and 
only across the road opposite. Like I mentioned the grass verge is very well maintained by 
ourselves and cut weekly by my husband 

• My daughter comes to visit us almost daily and uses her to car to bring our disabled 
grandson with her. She always parks across our driveway. If single yellow lines were put in 
place then this will cause her extra problems and endanger our grandson who has no sense 
of road awareness. It will also mean my neighbours will have parking problems as her car 
will be where they normally park their car so less parking for the neighbours. 

• Why should we also be the only privately owned house up Crawford Road that has single 
yellow lines across our driveway, especially as we paid extra for the driveway to be put in. 

Due to the above points you will see that neither the single yellow lines over my driveway and 
directly outside my house where the grass verge is would be applicable for the reasons you state in 

Appendix A

Appendix A Page 3

Page 15



your proposal letter. i.e heavy parking demands for non- residents and also for the grass verge 
protection. 

I look forward to a prompt response to this letter as it is causing unnecessary stress and worry. 

Kind Regards 

Appendix A

Appendix A Page 4

Page 16



Ka Ng, 
Council Offices, 
The Campus, 
Welwyn Garden City, 
Herts 
AL8 6AE 

04/03/2019 

Dear Sirs/Madam 

Re: Parking Restriction Proposals 

Crawford Road 
Hatfield 
AllO OPA 

I am resident of Crawford Road for over 3 years and have seen the parking situation getting worse. 
And I believe issue is worse during the evenings and weekends. Also, I believe the reason for this, 
is the increase in residential car ownerships. As most resident (including myself) have two cars. 

Since Hatfield is not well connected in terms of public transport such as London, its necessary for 
some to have two cars due to employment, family or health reasons. 

To restrict parking and issuing of Parking Charge Notice (PCN) is not a solution to the problem. As 
the problem wi ll still persist and cause much inconvenience to some/most residents of the area. 
For example, having to park late night far away from your home when the street lights are off. Or 

parking further away from home for those w ith children and those who have mobility issues. 

I have gone through each of your proposal and provided my view and solution where possible. 

Single Yellow Line/Double Yellow Line 

There is no need of single yellow lines on Crawford Road. Parking is not an issue during the day 
time. It is more of an issue during the evenings, due to the increase of residential car ownerships 
and not by non-residents. However, having double yellow lines near junctions would be beneficial 
to make oncoming traffic entering and leaving the road easily and safely. 

Verge Protection Order 

I am against Issuing a PCN for those who park on the verges. As this does not solve the problem in 
the area. Parking spaces in the area is very limited and at times it is necessary to park/mount half 

Appendix A

Appendix A Page 5

Page 17



of the vehicle on to verge to avoid tight passing of oncoming traffic rather than parking next to the 
verge. As mentioned above, residential car owner ship increased. Residents are more likely to 
have 2 cars in the house hold . Instead of issuing PCN which does not solve the problem 
we/Wei Hat council should find ways of providing solutions. Like converting some of the verge to 
allow vehicle to mount on to the verge for parking. There has been similar design on Crawford 
Road near the roundabout with Homestead Road, See appendix item 1. I have identified some 
other verges where this similar approach can be implemented, see appendix item 2 and 3. 

I unfortunately do not have a driveway as my property is on a lay-by. And the lay-by at times can 
handle 3 cars. So, when I come home from work (7-8pm) there are no parking space available on 
the lay-by. Which then leads me to park on the verge if it's not taken as its closer to my home. If a 
PCN is to be enforce then I would want the restriction of having a driveway on a lay-by lifted for 
those residential properties situated on a lay-by. However, lifting the restriction and allowing drive 
way may help with the parking issue on the road. 

Parking on dropped kerb 

Parking on dropped kerb should be allowed for resident with a driveway and for their visitors. This 
will help reduce the parking issues especially on weekends when the residents of the area are 
more likely to have visitors visiting. 

I hope this letter explains why I am against the single yellow lines, the PCN and, For parking on the 

dropped kerb . Also, I hope the solution I have provided would be considered to reduce the parking 
issues in the area. 

If you have any question or would like to discuss any points I raised above further, please do not 
hesitate to contact me on the address mention above or to call me on the number mentioned 
below 

yours faithfully 

Appendix A

Appendix A Page 6

Page 18



Appendix 

Item 1 

Item 2 

Appendix A

Appendix A Page 7

Page 19



Item 3 

Appendix A

Appendix A Page 8

Page 20



Appendix A

Appendix A Page 9

Page 21



Attribute 

Note 

I Value 

Email received : From: 

Sent 08 March 2019 09:19 

To: parking 

(printable version) 

o.uk] 

Subject: For the attention of Ka Ng, Corporate Director Resources, Environment and Cultural Services 

Importance: High 

WARNING: This email originated outside the WHBC Network. Please be extra vigilant when opening 

attachments or clicking links. 

Dear sir/madam 

Ref: Proposed parking restrictions in the Birchwood area 

I must protest in the strongest way possible about your proposed installation of double yellow lines to the 

Area of Birchwood namely Great Heath. 

•The majority of dwellings in Great Heath are flats or maisonettes. Some of these dwellings were built with 

only 1 allocated parking space, most were built with no allocated spaces. In these days where most families 

have 2 cars, this is now totally inadequate. Subsequently, parking is already oversubscribed 

•There are a total of 20 flats with only 11 allocated parking spaces, and space for another 4 cars on the 

corner. 

• Councils own parking standard for "Total number of parking spaces per dwelling required for apartments 

and houses that have only communal parking provision" works out at 30 spaces for these 20 flats. As 

mentioned, there is only physical space for 15 vehicles. 

•Whilst I agree with 3 of the 4 proposed double lines, the one marked in yellow, is the one I am contesting. 

The other 3 areas are not used for parking anyway, as it would impend the flow of traffic, however, the one 

marked in yellow, this area is used for parking up to 5 cars, all the time. (This brings the spaces available to 

park for the residents of Great Heath to 24 maximum. Still short of the governments parking provision 

guidelines. 

•To my knowledge, in the past 5 years, there has not been one accident on this corner, due to cars parked on 

this corner. 

• I attach these photographs to show you the issues faced in Great Heath. 

•If you were to go ahead with all the proposals, are the council going to provide any additional spaces, for 

example, turning some of the grassed area outside 29 > 35 into hard standing parking spaces? 

Appendix A

Appendix A Page 10

Page 22



Attribute Value 

I would appreciate it if you could include this objection and also verify receipt ofthis email. 

Thank you very much. 

yours sincerely 

IGreat Heath 

Labels 

Attachments 08.03~oc1 .docx 

Appendix A

Appendix A Page 11

Page 23



Appendix A

Appendix A Page 12

Page 24



 

Appendix A

Appendix A Page 13

Page 25



oe~ k a._ tJ5 

-r o-0 bJ. 12 eieac.f. 

1-!J/c~ 
Uov!-!> 
/}/ . .to DQ_~ 

-1'1e. {o~ 6 eJ-'S1k /...£7 J..~ r S cl u..Q 

./P I.~ doub4_ ~'4.) Ir~, I wo.Jef 
ft,..£ ti.JS ~ fl\(.(.,,._r.)e,,.ioJ. ~ I >~ 
~~ ~r{~r's ~ /e/AQ ~~1 ~ ?/.J; 

t;Jo..JJ_ ~ ~ ~ ~ t/ ( Wa-::S 

~ ~ P""'- o-d-*Il'Je. 1-o /;;~ J- v~o~. 
( c~ ~e.,922- i-J-14r ~~s HoJr~ ~J 

( f- f-r-ie.>Jfl4-... ~ <.A~ /o flw ~ 4~ h7
1 

IH"1~ ?-4._ S"'r~ s~ o-rks ct_ 

Co~ of S"~ ~ ~0 ~ &¥" k..B Sk/?P,4j 

cl.eJ!ute~ ~ .t-4. N.~~ pt~ 1-e /-Jc 
w ef.lt,....;.. .J-4.. rt~ o/. ~'~ h~ ( > s 
ro~ ~~J It wJd,.;.1- ko. (~ ~f·~ .tJ.., 
re~ ~ cOe,fc~. c~ I s-u1~ ~ 
<;;'~ "µJI~ It~ wc?t.. {Jw-H. 1~ w~ 

Appendix A

Appendix A Page 14

Page 26



{.4_ kc,...../' 5 c/' er. ~ 0- 3 f '"1 IA. is w ~j 

~o-l u.e._ },u).-1... I .s 5 ue. S , 

Appendix A

Appendix A Page 15

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, BIRCHWOOD, HATFIELD) 
(RESTRICTION OF WAITING) ORDER 2019 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, BIRCHWOOD, HATFIELD) 
(PROHIBITION OF STOPPING AND WAITING ON VERGE OR FOOTWAY) ORDER 2019 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (pursuant to arrangement made 
with Hertfordshire County Council) proposes to make the above Orders under the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 to introduce restrictions in parts of Various Roads, Hatfield as specified in the 
Schedules to this Notice. 

Full details of the proposals are contained in the draft Order, the plans and the statement of reasons 
which may be inspected during normal office hours at the offices of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, 
The Campus, Welwyn Garden City or viewed at www.welhat.gov.uk from Wednesday 13th February 
2019. 

General enquiries relating to the proposals should be referred to Matthew McCann, Parking Services, 
Council Offices, Welwyn Garden City, AL8 6AE (01707 357000); email parking@welhat.gov.uk  

Objections to the proposals should be made in writing to Ka Ng, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn 
Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE by Friday 8th March 2019, stating the grounds on which they are made.  

SCHEDULE 1 - No waiting at any time (double yellow lines) - those sections of road(s) listed 
below as set out in the Order and accompanying plans  

Access Road to Birchwood Leisure Centre, Birchwood Close, Birchway, Branch Close, Burnside Close, 
Chelwood Avenue, Cornerfield, Crawford Road, Crop Common, Great Heath, Green Croft, Ground Lane, 
Heathcote Avenue, Hillfield, Homestead Road, Jubilee Court, Little Mead, Lockley Crescent, Longmead, 
Northfield, Talbot Road, Warren Close, Warren Green, West View, Wood Common 

SCHEDULE 2 - No waiting Monday to Friday 8am to 5pm (single yellow line) - those sections of 
road listed below as set out in the Order and accompanying plans  

Crawford Road 

SCHEDULE 3 - No stopping or waiting on verge or footway at any time – those sections of road(s) 
listed below as set out in the Order and accompanying plans 

Access Road to Birchwood Leisure Centre, Birchwood Avenue, Birchwood Close, Birchway, Branch 
Close, Chelwood Avenue, Cornerfield, Crawford Road, Drovers Way, Great Heath, Green Croft, 
Heathcote Avenue, Hillfield, Homestead Road, Little Mead, Lockley Crescent, Longmead, Northfield, 
Talbot Road, Warren Close, Warren Green, West View, Wood Common 

Ka Ng 
Corporate Director 
Resources, Environment and Cultural Services 
Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE 

13th February 2019 

Appendix B

Appendix B Page 1

Page 29



Appendix B Page 2

Page 30



Appendix B Page 3

Page 31



Appendix B Page 4

Page 32



Appendix B Page 5

Page 33



Appendix B Page 6

Page 34



Appendix B Page 7

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Crawford Road advertised proposals with single yellow line 

Crawford Road amended proposals without single yellow line 

Appendix C

Appendix C Page 1

Page 37



K
e

y:-

E
W

S N

T
itle

:- T
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f W
e

lw
yn

 H
a

tfie
ld

 (V
a

rio
u

s R
o

a
d

s, B
irch

w
o

o
d

, H
a

tfie
ld

) (R
e

strictio
n

 o
f W

aiting) O
rder 2019 - M

ap for W
est V

iew
 - H

om
estead R

oad

©
C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p

yrig
h

t A
ll rig

h
ts re

se
rved W

elw
yn H

atfield
B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
cil L

ice
n

se
 N

o
. LA

 100019547 2019

D
ra

w
n

 - 2
2

/0
3

/2019
S

ca
le - 1

:2
5

0
0 on A

3

B
y - P

a
rkin

g
 S

e
rvices - M

M
D

ra
w

in
g

 - Y
e

llo
w

 L
ine P

lan 1

T
h

is lin
e

 m
e

a
su

re
s 1

0
0

m
m

 o
n

 o
riginal A

3 paper

E
xistin

g
 D

o
u

b
le

 Y
ellow

 Lines

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 D
o

u
b

le
 Y

ellow
 Lines

Appendix C Page 2

Page 38



Appendix C Page 3

Page 39



Appendix C Page 4

Page 40



Appendix C Page 5

Page 41



Appendix C Page 6

Page 42



Appendix C Page 7

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Ka Ng – Corporate Director 

Resources, Environment & Cultural Services 
Welwyn Hatfield Council, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Hertfordshire, AL8 6AE 
 
BY EMAIL 
 
Wednesday 3 April 2019 
 

Dear Ka 

My name is . My partner and I are residents in Northfield, Hatfield and am writing to raise an existing 
issue with parking outside our home. We had had a letter from you regarding the laying down of yellow lines in a 
number of surrounding streets and my issue is not so much to do with the lines however they are going to have a 
knock of effect to the existing issue which will make it worse. 

We have enclosed a hand drawn diagram to help you see the problems that we are about to describe. We reside in a 
block that has twelve dwellings which is set back from the road. To our right there is another block that contains the 
same if not more flats in it. To our left there is another block and whilst we have not been into it to see how many flats 
there are the number is going to be around the same. At the front of our block there is a area set aside for parking. 

The parking area that we refer to has the capability (subject to people being considerate with how they park) to 
accommodate nine spaces. Not every dwelling has a vehicle and in some cases there are dwellings with two vehicles. 
The first issue is that this parking area does not have defined lines and on a daily basis people park in a way that takes 
up two spaces or they park too closely to another vehicle which causes problems. I am a Police Officer and have on 
three occasions recently come close to going outside to intervene in disputes between people over parking. There have 
been incidents of aggressive notes being placed on peoples cars which evidences the building tension. Given there are 
up to nine spaces serving considerably more dwellings competition for a parking space is very high. As a result of 
insufficient spaces people are often forced to park on grass areas or put two wheels on a kerb as not to block the road 
completely.  

The question could be asked why people do not park up on the main road. There are two issues here. The first is that 
people from houses across the road often park on the road. The area of road immediately in front of my block is on a 
bend and this causes a blind spot and given the speed that some vehicles travel along the road I am surprised that 
there has not been a serious accident happen. I can only assume that improving road safety is the reason behind 
putting the yellow lines down. The case is often that there is no space between the front of the block right down to the 
roundabout. If you drive along that road in the evening you are constantly having to pull in to allow other cars to pass. 
When yellow lines are added to that section of the road as highlighted in the plans I was sent those cars are going to be 
pushed from there and the obvious thing to follow is to start parking in the area at the front of my home adding to the 
problem that we currently experience. 

There is a neighbor downstairs who drives a blue VW. He has decided that he has adopted the first space to the left as I 
look at my window. If anyone but him parks there he challenges them, takes photographs of their cars and has been 
calling the police. Within the last two weeks I have seen this man and another resident have a full blown argument in 

 
 Northfield, Hatfield, Hertfordshire, AL10 0AQ 

Tel:  
Email: @outlook.com  

 

 

Page 45



Page 2 

the street as this man parked his vehicle in front of the other residents I assume to prove a point. There was a heated 
row and the police called (but I don’t know if they attended). There was an additional incident involving this male in 
the last few days that resulted in police attendance where he was shouting and swearing due to someone parking in 
“his parking space”.  

At weekends the residents parking is also taken up by people going over to the field at the back of my block to play 
football. This has resulted in disputes in the street. 

There have been a number of incidents of vehicles being damaged and I can only assume that this is down to a angry 
resident. My wing mirror was kicked off and I have had two suspicious damaged tyres, my dad who resides in this 
block has had his rear quarter light smashed in, another neighbor has had a tyre slashed and there may well be more.  

I appreciate that you may get a number of letters such as this and when I highlight a problem I try where I am able to 
suggest possible solutions to it. 

In my diagram you will see two areas marked 1 and 2 that could very easily be replaced with tarmac and would create 
a number of additional spaces to ease the situation. This would still leave sufficient room for a footpath. There is 
another block that is the same as mine further down the road next to the leisure centre and they had their parking 
area extended in this way. They do not have the issues that we have in this block and I wonder why we cannot be 
afforded the same as this block. 

The second option would be to knock down some of the unused/old garages to the left of my block. These garages are 
hardly used and in fact I think they are used for storage rather than for vehicle storage. There is also the issue of cars 
gathering in there at times where drug dealing takes place which means there is a crime reduction opportunity. 

The third option and this would not be popular in any way shape or form would be a permit system. But even if that 
was the case with insufficient spaces we are back to square one but with the added anger that people have paid a fee 
and still cannot park. 

I would be grateful if you would take on board the issues that are currently happening. Without the creation of 
additional spaces this situation is going to continue and will in fact get worse when the people who park on the road 
are pushed away from it due to yellow lines. The situation is tense and I see on a daily basis residents playing tricks 
such as purposely parking to obstruct two spaces and then they will move their car and park properly when a 
partner/friend arrives with their car so that both have a space. 

I would be more than happy to discuss this situation further if you wish. I work a shift pattern and do long hours so if 
you were to call and there was no answer please try again or email me. 

Thank you for your time and I hope to hear from you. 

 

 

Page 46



P
age 47



Appendix D

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

4.9 There is one objection pertaining to Northfield, and the proposal for double yellow lines in the 

surrounding roads. 

 

Below is a summary of the grounds for objection. 

a) The parking area does not have defined lines and on a daily basis people park in a way that 

takes up two spaces or they park too closely to another vehicle 

b) Why people do not park up on the main road…..first is that people from the houses across 

the road often park on the road.  

c) The case is often that there is no space between the front of the block right down to the 

roundabout.  

d) When yellow lines are added to that section of road as highlighted in the plans I was sent 

those cars are going to be pushed from there and the obvious thing is to start parking in the 

area in front of my home. 

e) In my diagram you will see two areas marked 1 and 2 that could very easily be replaced with 

tarmac and would create a number of additional spaces to ease the situation. 

f) There is another block that is the same as mine further down the road next to the leisure 

centre and they had their parking area extended in this way.  

g) The second option would be to knock down some of the unused/old garages to the left of 

my block. These garages are hardly used and in fact I think they are used for storage rather 

than for vehicle storage.  

h) The third option would be a permit system. 

 

4.10 The reasons for moving forward with the proposals for double yellow lines are as follows: 

4.10.1 Responses to 4.9 

a) Placing bay markings in this location may not resolve parking in an obstructive manner as it 

is not enforceable, unless an off street order is specifically made. Marking out bays need to 

be within defined limits and can in some circumstances reduce the number of vehicles able 

to park when marked out.  

b) The road in question, Longmead, is public highway and available for all to park on. It is not 

exclusively for a particular set of residents. On visits by officers at various times of the day, 

spaces are often seen on that section of the highway and does not indicate at 100% capacity 

of kerbside space available. 

c) On various visits, there is often spaces seen along Longmead and there is often spare 

capacity near to the Zebra Crossing as well as in Birchwood Leisure Centre car park. 

Additional parking spaces were created on Cornerfield which is an approximate 5 minute 

walk from Northfield. Spare capacity is often seen on Chelwood Avenue and Homestead 

Road, which is also a short walk from these flats. 

d) The double yellow lines are being proposed on junctions to enforce what is in the Highway 

Code – not to park within 10 metres of a junction. The Council are looking to future proof by 

introducing double yellow lines at junctions when working in the area as to prevent any 

future safety concerns. It is not anticipated that large scale vehicle displacement will occur 

due to installation of lines. 

e) All locations are assessed on an individual basis, and as each site will vary in its capacity to 

accommodate additional improvement works.  In this situation, the area in question had 

Page 48



Appendix D

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

been investigated previously and it had not been possible to create additional spaces due to 

various factors including lack of visibility and space. 

f) It is not always possible to construct an equal amount of parking bays at each location. The 

scope of parking improvements that are constructed are unique to each particular area. The 

other site was suitable for improvement works. 

g) After checking with the garages team, this block of garages have recently been refurbished 

and it is not available for demolishment. The policy for garage rental allows occupants to use 

for storage of vehicles or items. 

h) As the objector raises, a permit scheme would not be suitable in this location as it primarily 

used by residents and would not reduce the number of vehicles seeking to park in this 

location. In the initial consultation, there was low response rates from residents within 

Longmead and Northfield for any parking restrictions such as permit schemes.  

 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 INTRODUCTION OF WAITING RESTRICTIONS AND VERGE AND FOOTWAY PROHIBITION IN VARIOUS ROADS, BIRCHWOOD, HATFIELD
	Appendix A
	Gafoor Crawford
	Golder Crawford
	Thurairajah Crawford
	Sabeta Great Heath
	Thurston Great Heath
	Thurston Great Heath
	Thurston photos

	Bruce Talbot

	Appendix B
	NOI
	Plan 1 Area
	Plan 1 DYL
	Plan 1 VPO

	Plan 2 Area
	Plan 2 DYL
	Plan 2 VPO

	Ground Lane DYL Plan
	Crop Common DYL Plan

	Appendix C
	Appendix B
	NOI
	Plan 1 Area
	Plan 1 DYL
	Plan 1 VPO

	Plan 2 Area
	Plan 2 DYL
	Plan 2 VPO

	Ground Lane DYL Plan
	Crop Common DYL Plan

	Appendix C

	Appendix D - Late Objection




